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The financial year 2009/10 was a tough but promising one.
The Group had succeeded in transforming into a conglomerate
after years of cultivation. The strategy of developing multiple
business segments by utilising diversed technical expertise of
management and operation teams proved to be sound and
successfully especially in time with erratic market conditions.

| am delighted to announce that, in recognition of the
shareholders continuous support to the Group, the Board
of Directors has proposed a dividend payment for four

consecutive years.

Following a period of high demand and lucrative prices for
semi-submersible transport capacity that attracted new
market entrants, newly built and newly converted semi-
submersible vessels are gradually being completed and put into
operations. At the same time, offshore projects and large scale
cargo shipments were being held back during the economic
downturn since late 2008. These aforesaid factors together
drove down market prices and utilization of the Group’s
transport vessel for the financial year 2009/10. Nevertheless,
the Group still managed to turn in operating profit and healthy
cashflow from this business segment in the Year, mainly
attributable to its competitive edge of simplified and restrained
cost structure over that of other market players.

Looking forward, the Group is watchful as economic data
still indicates global recovery is bumpy. In the meantime, the
Group remains cautious in undertaking assignments to avoid
throat cut battle with competitors and mindful with cost control
measures to preserve financial strength to grasp opportunities
arising from market recovery.

The Group’s construction business regained impetus during
the year. Market sentiment and condition were boosted up by
the hastened launch of 10 major infrastructure plans to combat
economic downturn brought on by the financial tsunami. The
Group was awarded projects worth more than a hundred
million Hong Kong Dollars in both public and private sectors

Chairman’s Statement

EREWE

E-TZNFE_T-TFEEMRF
B HARESTRS  BEXNEE

AFEm P R H) o 818 % F R H S A B
fro AEEFNBERNREFEBREZITER
R FRZ T EBRRE - RN RS
ZAEMEE  RRZEHLEEET R
EMTHRRTERE B KB -

AARAREM » BEHBREAEEEF

M BEEREZINEE=FRERS
BAEEREK  BRAERRERES -

EREFENERE N 2T RRIEAE
T%'EFQ—&ﬁW@'W%T%WW
BIREEMA - & ﬁLL&ﬁ&Lm
FEEMFEE TR A B
:ggﬂii%@ﬁL'%ﬁlk&Kﬂ
EEXIER  ACAKKEE_ZZNFZE
R -THPRFREERERNTISER
RERAERSE - BERAEBEAFEDA
AT EEB ) HERKLE ENNTES
ﬁimui CEEERARAEEEEEM
Ms2mREMSNEE 2 E  AEHEEN
PR GG - BRI BREE -

AEBYMSVBEREE  AEEBER
RIRBEEER Z RN ARPAN - Eit [
B AEBEREERNARER T - B
REMEABT - TRBESERNZEHE
It BRERFRENTBANE  EHLE
MISEREKE

REBENREEXBEAFEERERD
7o RS REE S| B R MITK
IEFAROTAEZTREAE  RETH
BRA - ASEETLFAETHA—E
BITHRAERFLETE - AEBEELRE
EATKTBRBRNBIATIEN B

—Z—TFF | ANNUAL REPORT 2010



Chairman’s Statement
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in the second half of the year. During the year, the Group
completed a subcontract of advanced work for marine piling
for the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Main Bridge project. The
percentage of completion of other outstanding projects ranged
from approximately 12% to 54% as at year end.

The Group envisions that the market momentum will improve
as the major infrastructure projects have invariably entered
into construction stage according to the HKSAR government’s
timetable. These projects have been grouped into 3 phases
in order of priority for completion in 2013, 2016 and 2021
respectively. During the stage of recovery, the Group
will continue to take cautious approach in tendering for
construction projects, paying special attention to unfavorable
factors such as impact on borrowing costs upon withdrawal
of governmental economic stimulation packages and soaring
material and labour costs. With practical and proven expertise
in land and marine piling and a well-maintained reserve of
construction plant and equipment, the Group is confident in
attaining a greater share in the growing construction market in
ensuing years.

Looking ahead, we expect that the forthcoming year will be
a year of steady development, as the Group continues to
move forward to achieve medium to long-term growth and
expansion.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank all our customers
for their continue support, our business partners, suppliers
and contractors for working hard alongside us, and our
shareholders for their continuing confidence in our Group. |
would also like to express my deepest appreciation to all staff
and our Board of Directors for their effort and dedication to the
Group.

Lau Chun Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16th July 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31st March 2010 (the
“Year”) amounted to HK$124.1 million, an increase of 10%
from that for the year ended 31st March 2009 (the “Pervious
Year”). Marine transportation and construction businesses
accounted for approximately 54% and 46% of the Group’s
turnover respectively. Operating profit for the Year increased
by 42% from HK$9.9 million as recorded in the Pervious
Year to HK$14.1 million. Gross profit ratio slid from 29% to
26%. The growth in turnover and operating profit are mainly
attributable to re-commencement of foundation works in
August 2009 which started contributing to the Group’s revenue
since October 2009. Accordingly, the Group’s performance
demonstrated large improvement in second half of the year as
compared to the first. The turnover and operating profit for the
interim period ended 30th September 2009 amounted to only
HK$36.7 million and HK$2.7 million respectively

Administrative expenses dropped by approximately 19% to
HK$20.6 million as reported for the Year from HK$25.5 million
for the Previous Year, mainly attributable to recovery of a bad
debt, reduction of legal and professional fee and provision
for impairment of receivables. Finance costs decreased from
HK$4.3 million as posted for the Previous Year to HK$3.5
million for the Year despite bank borrowings increased by
approximately 57%. The reduction was because the Group had
restructured the external borrowings to grasp the opportunity
of low interest rate environment under the worldwide
expansionary fiscal policy. As part of the Group’s restructuring
exercise, a pledged bank deposit had been made up of to
repay part of the borrowings. Finance income fell to HK$0.6
million, a reduction of HK$1.9 million as compared with that for
the Previous Year.

Further analysis on the performance of various business
segments is set out in the following sections.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Heavy Marine Transportation

Unpredictable oil prices resulted from economy downturn
brought on by worldwide credit crisis deterred demand for
exploration and excavation activities. Voyages undergone
during the Year were restricted to those for transporting
offshore engineering machinery and equipment for
infrastructure projects. As a result, the turnover in this division
dropped by approximately 41% from HK$112.6 million as
reported for the Previous Year to HK$66.9 million. Likewise,
operating profit fell to HK$13.1 million from HK$38.6 million
as posted in the Previous Year. Gross profit ratio was 20%
for the Year, which representing 41% decrease as compared
with 34% for the Previous Year. The drastic change of gross
profit ratio was mainly attributable to prevailing low transport
rate to boost market demand. The rate charged for the last
voyage in the Year represented only half of the average rate in
the Previous Year. Turning to cost side, the Group successfully
administered and curbed spending and achieved a 25% saving
in direct costs including fuel consumption. Utilization rate of
m/v Asian Atlas was reduced to 35% as compared with 45%
in the Previous Year. The rate of decline was less severe than
management’s expectation. Due to default on the part of
shipper with one assignment, m/v Asian Atlas was held up for
a much longer period than that mutually agreed for loading
operation. Demurrage charges were imposed on the shipper
according to contract terms.

Construction Projects

The Group’s construction operation had walked out from
a period of nonperformance with the launch of 10 major
infrastructure projects as mentioned in previous section.
The revenue from foundation works for the Year amounted
to HK$57.2 million whereas no revenue was posted for
the Previous Year. The revenue also included collection of
settlement for variation works on a previously completed
project. Foundation works recorded an operating profit of
HK$13.4 million for the Year and an operating loss of HK$16.0
million for the Previous Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Machinery Trading

The Group did not record any revenue for machinery and
equipment trading during the Year as there has been no sales
of its construction inventories.

Liquidity, Financial Resources, Capital Structure and Gearing

The Group generally finances its operations with internal
general resources and bank borrowings. As at 31st March
2010, the Group had cash and bank balances of HK$62.6
million (2009: HK$90.0 million) and total borrowings of
HK$158.4 million (2009: HK$100.3 million). Current portion of
long-term borrowings, short-term borrowings and amounts due
to directors at 31st March 2010 amounted to HK$117.6 million
(2009: HK$88.0 million). The Group’s gearing ratio, calculated
by dividing net borrowings by total equity, was 48% as at the
end of the year (2009: 5%). Interest on the Group’s borrowings
was mainly on floating rate basis. The increase in gearing
was mainly attributable to new borrowings incurred to finance
acquisition of construction equipment and operating activities
in construction business.

Operations of the Group are mainly conducted in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”) and United Stated dollar (‘US$”) and its revenue,
expenses, assets, liabilities and borrowings are principally
denominated in HK$ and US$, which do not pose significant
foreign currency risk at present.

Charges on Assets

As at 31st March 2010, the net book value of machinery and
equipment held under finance leases and pledged for long-
term bank loans amounted to HK$75.0 million (2009: HK$29.8
million) and HK$5.1 million (2009: HK$5.6 million) respectively.
Certain banking facilities are secured by bank deposits of
HK$46.5 million (2009: HK$65.2 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group had about 117 staff members (excluding directors)
as at 31st March 2010 and provides competitive remuneration
packages to employees which commensurate with individual
job nature and performance.

Contingent Liabilities

During the year, an action was lodged to the Federal Court of
Australia by a owner of the cargoes (the “plaintiff”) against a
subsidiary of the Company, Asian Atlas Limited (“Asian Atlas”)
claiming for loss and damage in relation to the transportation
of a jack-up barge of US$1,405,000 (approximately
HK$10,969,000).

On 25th January 2010, Asian Atlas filed a defence and a
cross-claim for the settlement of the outstanding demurrage
and other damages of US$1,492,000 (approximately
HK$11,640,000) to the plaintiff. The Court has given an order
for a mediation, which is expected to be held in August 2010.

The Group has sought the advice of its legal counsel and
considered that Asian Atlas has a reasonable chance of
success in defending the claim and also being awarded
damages on the counterclaim based on current findings.
Accordingly, no provision has been made for the claim and
the corresponding legal costs arising from the claim and
counterclaim.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEER|ME

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Company’s healthy development and to
enhance the interests of shareholders. During the financial year
ended 31st March 2010 (the “Year”), the Company remained
devoted to the formulating and maintaining of corporate
governance practices that are appropriate to the Company
to assert transparency, accountability and effective internal
control.

The Company has adopted the Code Provisions (“CG Code(s)”)
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as its own code
and has complied with the CG Codes throughout the Year
except there is no written terms on division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, which
is a deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Codes, as
more particularly described in the relevant section below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of the
Company and its duties include the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, business strategies, internal control
systems, material transactions, appointment of directors and
other significant operational, financial and legal compliance
matters. The Board delegates the authority to manage the daily
affairs of the Group to the Chief Executive Officer and senior
management.

The proceedings of the Board follow all relevant CG Codes.
The Board meets regularly for at least four times a year. All
Directors have full and timely access to relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the company secretary with
a view to ensuring the board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed. Each Director is able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
by making request to the Company Secretary, to assist in
discharging his duties.
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Corporate Governance Report

Composition

The composition of the Board is as follow:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lau Chun Ming — Chairman

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok — Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Lau Chun Ka

Ms. Leung Lai So

Mr. Hsu Kam Yee, Simon

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong — Company Secretary

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Chiu Kam Kun, Eric

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen — Chairman of Remuneration
Committee and member of
Audit Committee

— Member of Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee

Professor Wong

Sue Cheun, Roderick
Ms. Wong Tsui Yue, — Chairman of Audit Committee
Lucy and member of Remuneration

Committee

Mr. Chan Wai Dune (‘‘Mr. Chan”) resigned as an Independent
Non-executive Director, the chairman of audit committee and a
member of remuneration committee of the Company with effect
from 31st July 2009. Immediately following the resignation
of Mr. Chan, the Company had only two Independent Non-
executive Directors, the audit committee of the Company
comprised only two members, and there was no Independent
Non-executive Director who had appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise, which fell below the minimum number as required
under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the
qualification requirement set out in Rule 3.10(2) respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEER|ME

The Company had subsequently fully complied with the
aforesaid Listing Rules upon the appointment of Ms. Wong
Tsui Yue, Lucy with effect from 8th September 2009 as an
Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman of audit
committee and a member of remuneration committee of the
Company to fill the vacancy. Details of the abovementioned
changes are set out in the Company’s announcements dated
31st July 2009 and 8th September 2009 respectively.

The composition of the Board reflects a diverse yet balanced
set of skills and experience which is essential for effective
leadership of the Company. All the Board members possess
strong professional expertise, extensive experience in
corporate management as well as sharp commercial acumen.
Biographic details of Directors, including relationships among
members of the Board, are disclosed in the “Biographical
Details of Directors” section of the Report of the Directors.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual written confirmation of
independence pursuant to the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are held by different persons for purpose of maintaining
independence and a more balanced basis for judgments
and decisions. The Chairman is mainly responsible for the
leadership of the Board of Directors in formulating corporate
policies and business strategies and oversight of significant
compliance matters. The Chief Executive Officers focus on
implementing policies and strategies approved by the Board
and managing the Company’s businesses. There is no written
terms on division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer, which is a deviation from Code
Provision A.2.1 of the CG Codes which stipulates that the
division of responsibilities should be clearly established and
set out in writing. The Board considers that the responsibilities
of the two positions are fundamentally distinct and therefore
written terms of division are not necessary.
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Corporate Governance Report

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures for the appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Company’s bye-laws. All the
Directors are appointed for a specific term and are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The
Company currently does not have a nomination committee
and the Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing its
composition, monitoring the appointment and independence,
where applicable, of Directors, and identifying suitable
and qualified individuals to become board members where
necessary.

Remuneration of Directors

Non-executive Directors are paid fees generally in line
with market practice and taking into consideration the
responsibilities and time spent by Non-executive Directors on
the Company’s affairs. The remuneration of Executive Directors
is determined by the chairman of the Board in consultation with
the Remuneration Committee after taking into consideration
market trends and responsibilities and performance of the
individual with a view to provide attractive reward to and retain
high performing individuals.
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N\ =340 H

TEERRE

BOARD MEETINGS EEEgE

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year E=2ggRFELTHRTER - RN
and additional meetings are convened as and when required. BEEEREHEMER - NAFE - AQ

During the Year, four regular Board meetings were held by AERTUATHESeeR MEFZ
the Company and the attendance record of the Directors is as H Bk EH T o

below.
Meetings Attended/Meetings Held
BHEZEEH BETZEE
Audit Remuneration
Directors Board Committee Committee
= Exg EREEY FMESES
Lau Chun Ming 21 #x 87 4/4 N/A N/A
A i A
Lau Chun Kwok 2R 4/4 N/A N/A
N iE A A3 A
Lau Chun Ka EEES 4/4 N/A N/A
N iE A i@
Leung Lai So REF 4/4 N/A N/A
iE A i A
Hsu Kam Yee, Simon FT iR 1% 3/4 N/A N/A
i A N iE A
Chan Sun Kwong PR = 4/4 N/A N/A
A3 A N iE A
Chiu Kam Kun, Eric fiKib s 3/4 N/A N/A
iE A i A
Lee Peng Fei, Allen IR 4/4 2/2 1/1
Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick T 4/4 2/2 1/1
Chan Wai Dune BR 4 i 2/2 1/1 1/1
Wong Tsui Yue, Lucy B 1/1 1/1 N/A

TiEH
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Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors
at least fourteen days before the meetings and reasonable
notice is generally given for other meetings. Meeting agenda
and board papers together with other relevant materials are
sent to all Directors at least three days (or such other period
as agreed) before each meeting. The Company Secretary is
responsible to take minutes of all Board and Board committee
meetings. Draft and final meeting minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment and records respectively within
reasonable time after the meeting is held.

Guidelines are in place which stipulate that any material
matter which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial
shareholder or Director will be dealt with at a duly convened
Board meeting. The Company’s bye-laws also contain
provisions stipulating the procedures according to which
any material matters involving conflict of interests are to be
approved at Board meeting.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Ms. Wong Tsui
Yue, Lucy, who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
which lay down clearly its authority and duties, which include
the maintaining of an appropriate relationship with independent
auditors, review of financial information and monitoring the
financial reporting system and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee has met two times during the Year and
the work performed included the following.

— reviewed the Company’s annual report and results
announcement for the year ended 31st March 2009;

— reviewed the Company’s interim report and results
announcement for the period ended 30th September 2009;
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- met with the Company’s independent auditors and
management to discuss issues arising from the audit;

— considered and advised the Board on matters in relation
to new accounting policies and standard, internal control
measures and risk management procedures; and

— reviewed the engagement, independence, remuneration
and effectiveness of the independent auditors on both
audit and non-audit services.

The Company’s audited financial statements for the Year have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and is chaired by Dr.
Lee Peng Fei, Allen. Its primary objectives include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and packages of Executive Directors and ensuring that no
Director will be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has held one meeting during the
Year to review the remuneration packages of the Directors to
ensure they are fair, reasonable and competitive with reference
to general market practice and the duties of the Directors.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as its own code regarding securities transactions by
Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries and employees
of the Group who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company. All the Directors
have confirmed their compliance with the codes throughout the
Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the Company’s financial statements in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. Furthermore, the Board is responsible
for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Company’s annual and interim reports,
other price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory
requirements.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
of the Company is set out in the “Independent Auditors’
Report” forming part of this annual report.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
there are no any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining a sound
and effective system of internal controls to safeguard the
interests of the Company’s shareholders and the Company’s
assets.

The Company’s internal control system includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority and is designed
to help the achievement of business objectives, safeguard
assets against unauthorised use, maintain proper accounting
records for both internal use and publication and ensure
compliance with relevant regulations. The system is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage, rather than
eliminate, risks of failure in operational systems.
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The Board of Directors have continuously monitored and at
least annually reviewed the development and effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control system.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s
independent auditors in respect of services provided is as
follow.

Fees for audit services amounted to HK$905,000.
Fees for non-audit services amounted to HK$39,800.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of regular and open
communications with the Company’s shareholders and
encourages their active participation at general meetings.
The Chairman of the Board and Board Committees, the Chief
Executive Officer and senior management of the Company all
endeavour to make themselves available to answer questions
at the general meetings. The Company’s interim and annual
reports also serve as an important means of communication
from the Company and the Board to shareholders.

All resolutions proposed at general meetings are taken by poll
in accordance with the Listing Rules. Details of procedures are
included in all circulars to shareholders and will be explained
during general meetings.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in foundation works, trading
of machinery and equipment and vessel chartering. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set forth in note 33 to
the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance by operating segments
is set out in note 5 to the financial statements. All assets and
operations related to the construction and trading of machinery
and equipments businesses of the Group are located in Hong
Kong. The vessel chartering business is carried out worldwide
and its revenue and assets cannot be allocated into any
meaningful geographical segments.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2010
are set forth in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 38.

The directors proposed a final dividend of HKO.07 cent per
share to shareholders whose name appear on the register of
members on 3rd September 2010. The register of members
will be closed from 27th August 2010 to 3rd September 2010,
both days inclusive.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in plant and equipment of the Group

and the Company are set forth in note 14 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set forth in note

21 to the financial statements. There is no movement in the
share capital of the Company during the year.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 22 to the financial
statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$20,000.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 108.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

There is no outstanding share options as at 31st March 2009
and 31st March 2010. No options were granted during the year
and up to the date of this report.

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
directors (including their spouse and children under 18 years
of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or exercised,
any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or debentures, if
applicable) of the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Mr. Lau Chun Ming

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok

Mr. Lau Chun Ka

Ms. Leung Lai So

Mr. Hsu Kam Yee, Simon

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong

Mr. Chiu Kam Kun, Eric !

Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen 2

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick 2

Mr. Chan Wai Dune 2 (resigned on 31st July 2009)

Ms. Wong Tsui Yue, Lucy ? (appointed on 8th September 2009)

! Non-executive Director
2 Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with bye-laws 87 of the Company’s bye-laws,
Mr. Lau Chun Ka, Ms. Leung Lai So, Mr. Chiu Kam Kun, Eric
and Ms. Wong Tsui Yue, Lucy will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Other than the transactions as disclosed in note 32 to the
financial statements, no contracts of significance in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party in which a director was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at 31st
March 2010 or at any time during the year then ended.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

As at 31st March 2010, the interests and short positions of
directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, are as follows:

(@) Directors’ interest in the Company:

Number of shares
RoEAE

Name of director
Espng

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
BMRA L&

Long position 1,700,000,000 shares (Note 1)
& £1,700,000,0008% (KizE1)

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok
2R S A

Long position 225,000,000 shares (Note 2)
£ £225,000,0008% (i :£2)

Mr. Lau Chun Ka
BRR KA

Long position 225,000,000 shares (Note 3)
& 2225,000,000/% (Fff 7£3)
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Approximate

percentage of

Name of director Number of shares shareholding

EEpE BRHEE REBOBED L

Ms. Leung Lai So Long position 1,700,000,000 shares (Note 1) 56.29%

RBHLL K £1,700,000,0008% (Ff 1)

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong Long position 5,000,000 shares 0.16%

REXEE £ £5,000,0008%

Mr. Chiu Kam Kun, Eric Long position 680,000 shares 0.02%

#5195 £ £680,0008%

Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen Long position 4,320,000 shares 0.14%

TREREL K £4,320,0000%

Professor Wong Sue Long position 5,000,000 shares 0.16%
Cheun, Roderick £ 25,000,0008%

T EHE

Directors’ interest in the associated corporations: (b) EBEERHEE

Name of director
EENS

Ms. Leung Lai So
RBHLT

Ms. Leung Lai So
REHIL

Name of company
ARER

Actiease Assets Limited

Silver Bright Holdings Limited

Number of shares
R4 EE

Long position 61 shares
=E61K

Long position 10,000 shares
& £10,0008%

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
REBNE

100%

100%

EEEHRE

Capacity
&2

Beneficial owner and
beneficiary of
a discretionary trust
EnBAEAR
PRERAZEA

Beneficial owner

EREAA

Bl

Beneficial owner
TR A

mé}

\

Beneficial owner

BREAA

o
|

pu

Beneficial owner

EREAA

LA

Capacity
5%

Beneficiary of a
discretionary trust

PREEEREA

Beneficiary of a
discretionary trust

PREEREA
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Notes:

1. 1,700,000,000 shares were held by Actiease Assets
Limited, a company wholly-owned by Silver Bright Holdings
Limited which is indirectly owned by a discretionary trust of
which Ms. Leung Lai So is a beneficiary.

2. 225,000,000 shares were held by CKL Development
Limited, a corporation which is controlled by Mr. Lau Chun
Kwok.

3. 225,000,000 shares were held by Nice Fair Group Limited, a
corporation which is controlled by Mr. Lau Chun Ka.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the Directors are aware, the interest and short
positions of the persons, other than a director or chief
executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance as
at 31st March 2010 are as follows:

Name of substantial

shareholder Number of shares
TERRES BB gng 4=
Actiease Assets Limited Long position 1,700,000,000 shares

£ 21,700,000,0000%

Silver Bright Holdings Limited  Long position 1,700,000,000 shares
£721,700,000,000/%

ManageCorp Limited Long position 1,700,000,000 shares
£ 721,700,000,0000%

Dao Heng Trustee (Jersey) Long position 1,700,000,000 shares

Limited as trustee of The £ 21,700,000,0000%
LCM 2002 Trust
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Approximate

Name of substantial percentage of
shareholder Number of shares shareholding Capacity
TERRUEEB BH A BREMNBEIL =S
CKL Development Limited Long position 225,000,000 shares 7.45% Beneficial owner

£ %5225,000,000/% EREAA
Nice Fair Group Limited Long position 225,000,000 shares 7.45% Beneficial owner

& 225,000,000/ ExEAA
Ms.Tang Lin Ngor Long position 225,000,000 shares 7.45% Interest of her spouse
MEmat £ 2225,000,0008% [P
Ms. Ip Fung Sheung Long position 225,000,000 shares 7.45% Interest of her spouse
ERER T & £225,000,0000% Ffd 2
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS ESHEEE
Chairman and Executive Directors FREATES

Mr. LAU Chun Ming, aged 67, is an Executive Director, the BIIRALEE 6758 AEEEE - FER
Chairman and founder of the Group. Mr. Lau is responsible for BN BERASEEBEBRBARE %
the Group’s overall strategic planning, business development BHELGIFTEEBARRK -2 EB

and formulation of overall corporate policies. Mr. Lau has —NEZFUREREERMEZRELER
been involved in trading and maintenance of machinery and R - MR BERES o 1L -
equipment, ship dismantling, repairing and trading since 1970. BE—NANTFARDEMETIE -

Besides, he has been involved in foundation works since 1990.

He is a brother of Mr. Lau Chun Kwok and Mr. Lau Chun ERABIRBIEERIIRRSEEZ B
Ka and the spouse of Ms. Leung Lai So, each an Executive LRBHLZLTZEE  BESEHAERTT

o

it

Director.
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Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Chun Kwok, aged 58, is an Executive Director. He
is also the chief executive officer of the Group. He joined the
Group and has been involved in ship dismantling, repairing
and trading since 1970. He also has profound experience
in foundation related works for over 10 years. He has been
responsible for overall deployment of foundation construction
machinery and equipment, labour, resources and purchasing
activities of the Group since 1990. During the past decade, he
has involved intensively in the management of piling works of
various nature. He is a brother of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr.
Lau Chun Ka.

Mr. LAU Chun Ka, aged 56, is an Executive Director. He
joined the Group in the early 1970s and has been involved in
ship dismantling, repairing and trading. He also has profound
experience in mechanical engineering and construction/
foundation equipment for over 20 years. Since he joined
the Group, he has been responsible for the maintenance of
machinery and equipment of the Group. During the last about
20 years, he has concentrated on the overall management
of maintenance and repair of construction machinery and
equipment. He is a brother of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau
Chun Kwok.

Ms. LEUNG Lai So, aged 63, is an Executive Director. She
joined the Group since 1970. She has extensive experience
in management for over 20 years. She was responsible for
administration and accounting of the Group from 1970 to
1990, and has been responsible for administration and human
resources since 1990. She holds a diploma in management
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. She is the
spouse of Mr. Lau Chun Ming, an Executive Director and the
Company’s Chairman.
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Mr. HSU Kam Yee, Simon, aged 55, joined the Group in
2001 and is an Executive Director. He is responsible for the
business development, tendering and overall management
of construction projects of the Group. He has worked for
publicly listed construction and engineering companies in Hong
Kong for 28 years, involving in civil engineering and building
projects, specialising in foundation works of various nature.
He holds a bachelor degree of science in mathematics and
a bachelor degree of science in civil engineering from the
University of Saskatchewan in Canada and a master degree
in business administration from the University of East Asia in
the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC. He is a
Registered Professional Engineer in Hong Kong and a member
of the Institution of Civil Engineers in the UK and Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers. He was appointed by the Buildings
Department as a member of the Contractors Registration
Committee Panel for a period of two years commencing 31st
December 2004. Mr. Hsu is not related to any directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Mr. CHAN Sun Kwong, aged 43, joined the Group in 2002
and is an Executive Director. He is also the finance director
and company secretary of the Group. He is responsible
for advising on financial, accounting, treasury and banking
matters of the Group. He has over 20 years of experience
serving as management of public companies in different
industries including civil, electrical and mechanical engineering,
marine engineering and telecom and internet in Hong Kong
and overseas. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the UK, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the UK. Mr. Chan is not
related to any directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. CHIU Kam Kun, Eric, aged 51, is a Non-executive
Director. He joined the Group in 2000 and has been working
for major construction and engineering companies in Hong
Kong for over 29 years, involving in civil engineering and
building projects. He holds a higher diploma in civil engineering
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a bachelor degree
in laws from the University of London and a master degree
of science in construction project management from the
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers, a member of the Institution
of Civil Engineers in the UK and the Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators in the UK, and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Arbitrators. He is also a member of the Registered
Contractors' Disciplinary Board. Mr. Chiu is not related to any
directors, senior management or substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. LEE Peng Fei, Allen, CBE, BS, FHKIE, JP, aged 70, joined the
Company in 2003 and is an Independent Non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee. Dr. Lee holds an
honorary doctoral degree in engineering from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and an honorary doctoral degree in
laws from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr. Lee was a
deputy of Hong Kong SAR, the 9th and 10th National People’s
Congress, PRC and has taken an active role in public service.
He was formerly a member of the Hong Kong Legislative
Council from 1978 to 1997 and a senior member of the Hong
Kong Legislative Council from 1988 to 1991. Dr. Lee was
also a member of the Hong Kong Executive Council from
1985 to 1992. Dr. Lee is not related to any directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.
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Professor WONG Sue Cheun, Roderick, aged 65, joined
the Company in 2003 and is an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of both the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Professor Wong holds a bachelor
degree of arts from San Diego State College, the US and a
doctoral degree of philosophy from the University of Alberta,
Canada. He is a Fellow of the Royal Society of Canada and
Chevalier dans I'Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur
of France. Currently, he is the Vice-President (Research)/
Dean of Graduate Studies at the City University of Hong
Kong. Professor Wong is not related to any directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Ms. WONG Tsui Yue, Lucy, aged 49, joined the Company
in September 2009 and is an Independent Non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee. She holds a bachelor degree
in commerce and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia.
She has over 20 years experience working with listed
companies in the retail sector. She resigned from the Board
of Hong Kong Catering Management Limited (name changed
to Doxen Energy Group Limited on 26th April 2010) on 4th
November 2009 but remains as the company secretary of this
listed group and directors of two of its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, approximately 81.76 per cent. and 28.74 per
cent. of the Group’s turnover was attributable to the five largest
customers and the largest customer respectively.

During the year, approximately 48.12 per cent. and 14.17 per
cent. of the Group’s purchases were attributable to the five
largest suppliers and the largest supplier respectively.
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None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5 per
cent. of the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in
the major suppliers or customers above at any time during the
year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following connected transactions were entered into by the
Group during the year, certain details of which are disclosed in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(@) Leasing of storage property

On 16th September 2009, Sam Woo Bore Pile Foundation
Limited as tenant and Cheer Crown Limited as landlord
entered into a tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement”)
for leasing of certain property for open storage purpose
for a term of 24 calendar months commencing from 1st
August 2009 to 31st July 2011 (both days inclusive) at
a monthly rental of HK$90,000. The annual rental and
aggregate rentals payable under the Tenancy Agreement
are HK$1,080,000 and HK$2,160,000 respectively. The
management fees, rates and government rent in respect of
the property, if any, shall be paid by the landlord.

Sam Woo Bore Pile Foundation Limited is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company whereas Cheer Crown Limited
is wholly owned and controlled by Mr. Lau Chun Ming, a
director of the Company.
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Leasing of premises

On 16th September 2009, Sam Woo Holdings Limited as
tenant and Long Ascent Development Limited, Healthy
World Investment Limited, Cheer Wealth International
Development Limited, Cheer Profit International Enterprise
Limited and East Ascent Enterprise Limited as landlords
entered into various tenancy agreements (“Tenancy
Agreements”) for leasing of certain premises for directors’
quarters for a term of 24 calendar months commencing
from 1st April 2009 to 31st March 2011 (both days
inclusive) at a monthly rental of HK$43,000, HK$43,000,
HK$66,000, HK$3,000 and HK$3,000 respectively. The
annual rental payable under the Tenancy Agreements are
HK$516,000, HK$516,000, HK$792,000, HK$36,000 and
HK$36,000 respectively and the aggregate rentals payable
under the Tenancy Agreements are HK$1,032,000,
HK$1,032,000, HK$1,584,000, HK$72,000 and
HK$72,000 respectively. The management fees, rates and
government rent in respect of the property, if any, shall be
paid by the landlord.

Long Ascent Development Limited, Healthy World Investment
Limited, Cheer Wealth International Development Limited,
Cheer Profit International Enterprise Limited and East
Ascent Enterprise Limited are companies beneficially
owned by certain directors of the Company, including Mr.
Lau Chun Ming, Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, Mr. Lau Chun Ka
and Ms. Leung Lai So.

The Directors of the Company, including the Independent
Non-executive Directors, considered that all of the above
transactions were in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group, on normal commercial terms and fair and
reasonable so far as the Company and its shareholders are
concerned.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules,
PricewaterhouseCoopers and Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited,
the independent auditors of the Company, have performed
certain agreed-upon procedures on the continuing connected
transactions as set out in notes (a) and (b) above and reported
that:

(@) the transactions have been approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company;

(b) the transactions have been entered into in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions;
and

(c) the amounts of the transactions have not exceeded the
relevant caps.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the law
of Bermuda or the Company’s bye-laws in respect of the
Company’s share capital.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during
the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee, comprising three Independent Non-

executive Directors, has reviewed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules based

on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors.

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =HIEEERAF

BIE FHRBIE14A.3816 - XA T Z BT
AN & R RUK B TR B 15 AT R 2B S
@ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ@“ﬁatﬁtﬁmi@
MEbL)HEH S BREERER S 2 AT
HERRF

/

@) EFSCEHAEZZTRS

b) ZERXHEBREBEERZERHZEH
kR &

) ZERHZTBRUEBBLBEBLR -

BrBER

BREXIHNAARADRLEBFARF]

PR Z BB BRI

BE -HEIBELALQF LHERAS

ARBRETAMBRARRER - HER
B HEXBEOARREMEHRD -
EREES
H=RBUFNTEFEARIEREZE S

EMBAARKEARFE 2 REZHBEHRE -

RRZABERE

REARRESZAREMRAESAN
Mo RABREAH ARRERBEMR
ARMERTRERZIARTRE -



Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS BB

The financial statements have been audited by SRR E R RF K ES TR ESAT R
PricewaterhouseCoopers and Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. ARG EFMBERARIEZ  BE
Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re- BEHmESRITBEENLE -
appointment.

On behalf of the Board REXESE

Lau Chun Ming 24 87

Chairman E

Hong Kong, 16th July 2010 BB ZE—ZTF+LA+H
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B BT RS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Sam Woo Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 38 to 107, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31st March
2010, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31st March 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
BEERKESTMEKR
MR EEED

Hong Kong, 16th July 2010
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Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited
Certified Public Accountants
ABWZEMERAERA A
BMEZETAD

Hong Kong, 16th July 2010
B —F-TFLATAR

Franklin Lau Shiu Wai, Director
Practising Certificate number: P1886
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meZHEBRER

For the year ended 31st March 2010 #HE=_Z—TF=A=+—HItFE

Note
B 5

Revenue WA 5
Cost of sales $HE A 7
Gross profit EM
Other income H A YA 6
Administrative expenses TEER 7
Operating profit £ Tl
Finance income BE WA 8
Finance costs B & AR AR 8
Profit before taxation B B B g
Taxation credit TRIBHE % 9
Profit and total comprehensive income 7K A &) A% B2 i {5 54 F

for the year attributable to the equity Nire 2 H W=

holders of the Company 13
Earnings per share st

— Basic and diluted —ERREE 11
The notes on pages 44 to 107 L ERBEREES

are an integral part of these N EL4E107TEH

financial statements. 2 BIEE o
Dividends % 8. 10
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2010 2009
—E-2F —TTNhF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FAT
124,062 112,610
(91,936) (80,157)
32,126 32,453
2,522 2,939
(20,587) (25,484)
14,061 9,908

577 2,511
(3,533) (4,253)
11,105 8,166

579 5,944

11,684 14,110
HKO0.387 cent HKO0.467 cent
0.3877& 1L 0.46778 1
2,114 3,020




Consolidated Balance Sheet
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As at 31st March 2010 R=ZE—FF=A=+—H

2010 2009
—EBE-BF —ZFTTNF
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B 5 FET TFABIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment B 14 243,732 202,495
Deferred taxation assets RERIBEE 24 396 256
244,128 202,751
Current assets REEE
Trade and retention receivables JE UL BR T N B IR B & 16 34,469 5,468
Deposits, prepayments and other e BNZER
receivables H b JE YR IE 17 6,620 3,694
Inventories FE 18 11,015 14,887
Amounts due from customers for B TIEA 4
contract work BERIE 19 29,738 9,765
Cash and bank balances B RIBITHERR
Unrestricted 4 IR 20 16,064 24,790
Restricted A Rl 20 46,519 65,204
Tax recoverable A] U [B] 7 18 26 1,046
144,451 124,854
Total assets EEHAE 388,579 327,605
EQUITY Ea
Capital and reserves BEAXRREE
Share capital & 75 21 30,200 30,200
Reserves fE 22 165,764 156,194
Proposed final dividend BEaEARE 22 2,114 3,020
Total equity R 198,078 189,414
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kARBEMB
Long-term borrowings RHEIAE 23 40,843 12,263
Deferred taxation liabilities EEIBEE 24 15,135 15,599
55,978 27,862

M EMKERR D SEHNFEL4E1078 2K
financial statements. iF e

The notes on pages 44 to 107 are an integral part of these
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
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As at 31st March 2010 R=Z—ZFF=FA=+—H

2010 2009
—E-Z2F —ZTZTNF
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B 5 FET FAT
Current liabilities REAE

Trade and retention payables BEERERBRKRES 25 12,135 11,112
Accruals and other payables JEEtER R HEMERNKIE 26 4,648 11,030
Amounts due to related companies FE{ST BEE R RIFIB 27 158 158
Amounts due to directors FEREZEEKIA 27 23,726 14,375
Short-term borrowings BHIER 28 73,220 64,764

Current portion of long-term REIBEREZHS
borrowings 23 20,636 8,890
134,523 110,329
Total liabilities BEEHAHE 190,501 138,191
Total equity and liabilities EaRkEEHEE 388,579 327,605
Net current assets REBEEFHE 9,928 14,525
Total assets less current liabilities ZEAEBERADAEE 254,056 217,276

The notes on pages 44 to 107 are an integral part of these WEBEREBSHNREI4E107E 2 K
financial statements. 2o

The financial statements on pages 38 to 107 were approved by HNEBRIO7TE 2B REREN _E—
the Board of Directors on 16th July 2010 and were signed on EELrA+ANAEEESe R EVEES

its behalf. =
Lau Chun Ming Chan Sun Kwong
24 87 BR=
Director Director
EF EF

40 SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =fI&EEARAF



ASSETS

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Deferred taxation assets

Current assets
Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables
Amount due from a subsidiary
Cash and bank balances
Unrestricted
Restricted

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Other reserves
Proposed final dividend

Total equity
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Accruals and other payables

Amounts due to related companies

Amounts due to directors
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

BE

FRBEE
M B 2 A
EETIRE

ZRE
3

RBEE
®E - BAHIA
Ko B Ath & UK 5RO
J&E W P /B8 2 ] 3R IR
Be MRTTESF
B[R
BIR

EERE

R

BEXRf#E
(e
H bk
EEARHRE

EEkBEARE
REBEEFE
EERERRBRE

The notes on pages 44 to 107 are an integral part of these

financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 38 to 107 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 16th July 2010 and were signed on

its behalf.

Balance Sheet

EERRER

As at 31st March 2010 R=ZE—FF=A=+—H

Note
B 5

15
24

21

22

27

2010 2009
—E-8% —TENF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FAT
117,567 117,567
264 114

I 117,831 117,681 _
462 424
21,318 2,599
881 881
19,517 40,204

o 42,178 ¢ 44,108 __
160,009 161,789
30,200 30,200
125,725 126,643
2,114 3,020

I 158,039 159,863 _
1,520 1,476
158 158
292 292

e 1970 . 1,926
160,009 161,789
40,208 42,182
158,039 159,863

HEMBHRRBSHENFE44E107E ZH

HNEBEI07EZHBHREREN T —
TELATANBEESTSRELRER
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Lau Chun Ming Chan Sun Kwong

2|4 A FREN
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31st March 2010 #HE=_Z—TF=A=+—HItFE

At 1st April 2008
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Transactions with owners
Dividends relating to 2007/2008

At 31st March 2009

At 1st April 2009
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Transactions with owners
Dividends relating to 2008/2009

At 31st March 2010

The notes on pages 44 to 107 are an integral part of these

financial statements.

RZTEENEMA—H
ZEKE

AEE &7
BRZX5
2007/2008%F £ 2 f% 2.

R-EZNF=A=1+—H

R-_FTNFNA—-H

2EKE

R EE A
BRZR S
2008/2009F & 2 % &

R-E—FTF=A=1+—H
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Share
premium
Share and merger Retained
capital reserve earnings Total
R EER
BE  AfEE REEA Bt
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FET FET FTET
30,200 16,119 132,911 179,230
- - 14,110 14,110
= - (3,926) (3,926)
30,200 16,119 143,095 189,414
30,200 16,119 143,095 189,414
= - 11,684 11,684
- - (3,020) (3,020)
30,200 16,119 151,759 198,078
ILEMBHRER BN FL44E107 B 2 I

T o



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

nv_\ é IE ﬁ

MEHR

For the year ended 31st March 2010 HE =T —TF=A=+—HILFE

Cash flows from operating activities Z& FHRERE

Net cash (used in)/generated from LR (FTR)
operations 82 Re 55
Interest paid =ENEESS

Interest element of finance lease Bl & M &R~ RH B
payments i%2)
Hong Kong profits tax refund REBEMED
Net cash (used in)/from operating KEEK (R /S
activities e FR
Cash flows from investing activities REFZEHESHE
Purchase of plant and equipment BERELREM
Proceeds from disposal of plant and o R B3 M
equipment Fr18 3K 18
Interest received B U A&
Net cash used in investing activities REREFTARE T
Cash flows from financing activities FBEEZEHERE
Capital element of finance lease B E R E K
payments rEEn
Drawdown of long-term bank loans R ER B RITE
Repayment of long-term bank loans EERIPIRITER

1R BN H4R 1T & 3
888 R TE K

Drawdown of short-term bank loans
Repayment of short-term bank loans

Dividends paid ERIRE
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank AR #1745 7%
balances A, (38 )

J& A = IR N

Increase in balances with directors

Net cash from/(used in) financing mEES AR, (FTA)
activities IReF R

Net increase in cash and cash HERBEELEEER
equivalents N F &R

Cash and cash equivalents at FNzBEERRE
beginning of the year Z£HEHER

Cash and cash equivalents atend HFRZBEERES
of the year £E1EH

The notes on pages 44 to 107 are an integral part of these
financial statements.

Note
B 5

31(a)

20

2010 2009
—2-BF Z—TTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FAIT
(31,389) 66,258
(2,610) (3,529)
(923) (724)
995 648
A (33,927) ¢ 62,653
(9,362) 6,112)
2,533 1,419
577 2511
] (6,252) (2,182)
(12,339) (6,994)
12,000 5,000
(1,680) (1,307)
31,714 -
(13,792) (16,598)
(3,020) (3,926)
18,685 (26,092)
9,351 1,716
. 40919 (48,201)
740 12,270
(20,182) (32,452)
(19,442) (20,182)

HEHMHHRRBSHNFL4E107E ZH

i
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MYRE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sam Woo Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in foundation works, trading of machinery and
equipment for foundation works and vessel chartering.
The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda and listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Company’s
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton II, Bermuda. The principal place of business
in Hong Kong is Units 1310-13, 113 Argyle Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

These financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 16th July 2010.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). These financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are disclosed
in note 4 below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

@

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has adopted the following new and
amended HKFRSs as of 1st April 2009:

HKAS 1 (Revised and Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment)

HKAS 16 (Amendment) Property, Plant and Equipment

HKAS 19 (Amendment) Employee Benefits

HKAS 23 (Revised and Borrowing Costs
Amendment)
HKAS 27 (Amendment) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements
HKAS 36 (Amendment) Impairment of Assets

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

The adoption of these new standards and
amendments has no impact on the Group’s
results and financial position and does not
result in any substantial changes in the
Group’s accounting policies and presentation
of the financial statements except for the
following:

(i) presentation of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as
required under HKAS 1 (Revised); and

(i) change in the presentation of the
segment information as required under
HKFRS 8.

B ISR AR B EE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

The following revised standards and
amendments to existing standards have been
published and are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2010 or later periods, relevant to the
Group and have not been early adopted:

Effective for the year ending 31st March 2011
or later periods:

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclsoures

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

HKFRS 5 (Amendment) Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations

HKFRSs (Amendment) Improvements to HKFRSs

The Group is assessing the impact of these
revised standards and amendments. The
adoption of these revised standards and
amendments does not have significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries made up to 31st March.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBE®MEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 22 & (#&)

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable
to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of
the extent of any minority interest. The excess of
the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the profit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary in the consolidated
financial statements to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment loss (note 2.6). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as
the Board of Directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollar which is
the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

= assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing exchange rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates; and

= all resulting exchange differences are

recognised as a separate component of
equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MYRE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will
flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in the profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of both owned and leased plant
and equipment is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Machinery and equipment 10-15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Vessel 10 years

When a vessel is acquired, the costs of major
components which are usually replaced or
renewed at the next dry-docking are identified and
depreciated over the period to the next estimated
dry-docking date. Costs incurred on subsequent
dry-docking of a vessel are capitalised and
depreciated over the period to the next estimated
dry-docking date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date. The carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amounts if
the carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-
financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value of
an asset less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
subsidiaries if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RSERAR MIEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 lLeased assets

The Group leases certain plant and equipment.
Leases of plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased plant and
equipment and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other short-term and other
long-term payables. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to the profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period. The plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over
the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the
lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHEEMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Trade and other receivables 2.8 FEURBR X & H b E Uk 2R IE

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtors,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is
reduced through the use of an allowance account,
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
profit or loss within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for trade receivable.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against administrative
expenses in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MYRE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

2.10

Inventories

Inventories comprise machinery and equipment,
bunkers on board of vessels, lubricating oil and
marine products and are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value
of machinery is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses. Bunkers will be used for the
operation of the vessel, therefore the bunkers are
not written down to net realisable value when the
market price falls below cost if the overall shipping
activity is expected to be profitable.

Contracting work-in-progress

Contracting work-in-progress is valued at cost
plus estimated attributable profits, less foreseeable
losses and progress payments received and
receivable. Cost comprises direct materials, labour
and overhead expenses incurred.

Revenue from contracting work is recognised based
on the stage of completion of the contracts. The
stage of completion of a contract is measured by
reference to the gross billing value of contracting
work to date as compared to the total contract
sum receivable under the contract, or the total
costs attributable to work performed to date as
compared to the estimated total contract costs,
whichever is the lower. When it is probable that total
contract costs will exceed total contract revenue,
the foreseeable loss is recognised as an expense
immediately. Profits calculated in this manner are
transferred from gross profit to deferred income
on the balance sheet and is released to the profit
or loss in accordance with the stage of completion
of the contracts when the outcome of the relevant
contract can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Contracting work-in-progress (Continued)

2.12

213

The aggregate of the costs incurred and the profit/
loss recognised on each contract is compared
against the progress billings up to the year end.
Where costs incurred and recognised profits
(less recognised losses) exceed progress billings,
the balance is shown as due from customers
for contract works under current assets. Where
progress billings exceed costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses), the
balance is shown as due to customers for contract
works under current liabilities.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturity of
three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings
in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.
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PR ERAR MYRE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

213

214

Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the balance sheet date.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating

losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHBEMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Taxation 2.15 TIE

The current taxation charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred taxation is recognised using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements.

However, the deferred taxation is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred taxation is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
taxation asset is realised or the deferred taxation
liability is settled.

Deferred taxation assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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PR ERAR MYRE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria
have been met. Revenue is shown net of sales tax,
returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group.

Revenue from contracting work is recognised based
on the stage of completion of the contracts as
detailed in note 2.10 above.

Revenue from voyage chartering of vessel are
recognised on a percentage of completion basis.

Sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered to customers and the title has passed.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

2.17 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leaves are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(®)

(c)

Retirement scheme obligations

A Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) has been set up for all
employees of the Group in accordance with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance. Under the rules of the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees
are required to make contributions to the
MPF scheme at 5% of the employees’ gross
earning with a ceiling of HK$1,000 per month.

Contributions to the MPF scheme are
expensed as incurred and the assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to either:
terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formal plan
without possibility of withdrawal; or providing
termination benefits as a result of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits falling due more than twelve months
after balance sheet date are discounted to
present value.
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PR ERAR MYRE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18

219

2.20

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessors are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases, net of any incentives
received from the lessors are charged to the profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

Dividends distribution

Dividends distribution is recognised as a liability
in the financial period in which the dividends are
approved by the shareholders or directors, as
appropriate.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to liquidity risk,
credit risk, interest rate risk and foreign exchange
risk. The overall risk management programme of
the Group focuses on the unpredictability of the
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the financial performance of the
Group.

(@)

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed for each
operating entity of the Group and aggregated
by Group Finance. Group Finance monitors
rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash
to meet operational needs while maintaining
sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed
borrowing facilities at all times so that the
Group does not breach borrowing limits or
covenants (where applicable) on any of its
borrowing facilities. Such forecasting takes
into consideration the Group’s debt financing
plans, covenant compliance, compliance
with internal balance sheet ratio targets
and, if applicable external regulatory or legal
requirements.

Management considers that the Group does
not have any significant liquidity risk as
there were bank deposits of HK$46,519,000
pledged as collateral for the borrowings and
undrawn banking facilities of HK$41,278,000
as at 31st March 2010 and management
believes that the Group could refinance
its existing banking facilities and will have
sufficient financial resources to satisfy its
working capital requirements.

B ISR AR B EE

3 U¥EBmEE

3.1

f 15 R B R 3=

AEBEZEXBRDAZXRBE
Rk FERR - FXE R
RONERR - AEEZERBE
LEREMAEFEINERME
NATFERIME - WBRBER R
AEBEZHBR|IZIEBED

M2 o
(a) mEEZEE

RenBERAREEEE
BEEET BEEEY
BEE&GE - RENHY
AEBTEHNRBEST
RIBAELER - RE
ARAGENEERTE
MR RERNEARIERS
SHRERBERRER A
BAKRETGEREMAE
ERENEERERR
MWRE (MER) - ZF
BRZEAKBERKRE
AHE| - BT ROGME  F
EAMEEABRLEH
12 RINERESERE
Ko w@Em e flan 5%
PRl o

EEERA AEEWE
BEAMRBDESRAR -
BAR-_ZE—ZFF=H
=+—HZEEHRETRF
7X46,519,000/%8 JT 1E
1 15 #241,278,000/%8
T IEEREENHAA -
i & 12 E A8 {5 AN 5 B AT A
HRARTEEEER
& BBERBTBEIRE
NEEEEZEK -

—Z—TFF | ANNUAL REPORT 2010

61



62

Notes to the Financial Statements

B TSERARMIEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HXEREREREZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBRBREZEE)

@

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table analyses the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

Group

At 31st March 2010

Trade payables

Accruals and other payables

Amounts due to related

companies

Amounts due to directors

Borrowings

At 31st March 2009

Trade payables

Accruals and other payables
(excluding advance from

customer)

Amounts due to related

companies

Amounts due to directors

Borrowings

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =fI&EEARA T

(@) REELER

(%)

TRGBEREERES
WEHBE 2B THERE
BZIBBAAa T AEE

EARRZEBEE - %
K EZSERELHR
MRS RE -
rEE
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years
DIME 1225 2E55
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TET TET FHT
RZZE—ZF
=f=+—"H
NE 12,135 = =
[EEtERAREAM 4,648 = -
%H%ﬁ
AN R NGO
158 = -
ERNEEZRE 23,726
BE 96,339 18,198 24,951
137,006 18,198 24,951
RZBETNE
ZA=+—"H
& 15 BE 3K 11,112 - -
[EETER R EAM
NG
(TBEEEFPZH) 4,669 = =
FES RIS AR
158 = =
R EERE 14,375 = -
BE 76,136 8,620 4,148
106,450 8,620 4,148




Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR B EE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HERRTE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HBEBREAEZE(E)
(a)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (@) mEEZERE (&)
Company b NN
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years
DME 1226 2ZE54F
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHT FHT FHEL
At 31st March 2010 RZE—ZF
=A=+—~H
Accruals and other payables Bzt BB K&
H A & UIE 1,520 = =
Amounts due to related JE ST BEE A R FE
companies 158 - -
Amounts due to directors R EERE 292 - -
Financial guarantees for its BTHEMBRARZ
subsidiaries HISER 143,816 = =
145,786 - -
At 31st March 2009 RZTZTNF
=A=+—8°
Accruals and other payables Bt EH KX
H (e~ KA 1,476 - =
Amounts due to related e RAE A R F A
companies 158 — —
Amounts due to directors ERESZHIE 292 = -
Financial guarantees for its BTHENBARZ
subsidiaries ISR 72,126 = =
74,052 - -
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PR ERARMYRE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(®)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its cash and bank balances, trade and
retention receivables, deposits and other
receivables. The Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk is the carrying amounts of these
financial assets.

To manage this risk, management has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, management reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable to ensure that adequate impairment
provision is made for the irrecoverable
amounts.

The credit risk on deposits with bank is limited
because deposits are in banks with sound
credit ratings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as
cash and bank balances, other deposits and
borrowings are carried at variable rates. It is
the Group’s policy to maintain its borrowings
subject to floating rates, and accordingly, the
Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

At the balance sheet date, if interest rates
had been increased or decreased by 100
basis-point and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s and Company’s
profit for the year ended 31st March 2010
would decrease or increase by HK$576,000
(2009: HK$75,000) and would increase or
decrease by HK$350,000 (2009: HK$366,000)
respectively.

(d)  Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk
primarily arises from US dollar denominated
assets and liabilities. The foreign exchange
risk exposure is not significant to the Group
as Hong Kong dollar is pegged with US dollar
under the existing Hong Kong economic
environment.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders.
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PR ERARMYRE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The capital structure of the Group consists of
equity, borrowings and amounts due to directors. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders and sell assets to reduce borrowings.
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This gearing ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated
as total borrowings (including current and non-
current borrowings and amounts due to directors)
less cash and bank balances. The gearing ratios at

31st March 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

Total borrowings
Less: cash and bank

balances — unrestricted

and restricted

Net debt

Total equity

Gearing ratio

The increase in the gearing ratio for the year
resulted primarily from the increase in operating
activities of the construction business during the

year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amount of the financial assets of the
Group, including cash and bank balances, trade
and retention receivables and other receivables;
and financial liabilities including trade and retention
payables, accruals and other payables, amounts
due to related companies and directors and
borrowings approximate their fair values, which
either due to their short-term maturities, or subject
to floating rates.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.
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PR ERARMYRE

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Estimated useful lives and residual values of plant
and equipment

Management estimates useful lives of the plant
and equipment by reference to the Group’s
business model, its assets management policy, the
industry practice, expected usage of the assets,
expected repair and maintenance, the technical
or commercial obsolescence arising from changes
or improvements in the market. Management
determines the estimated residual value for its
vessel based on the current scrap values of steels
in an active market at each measurement date
since management decides to dispose of the fully
depreciated vessel as scrap steels. Residual values
of machinery and equipment are determined based
on prevailing market values for equivalent aged
assets taking into account the condition of the
relevant assets and other economic considerations.
Depreciation expense would be significantly affected
by the useful lives and residual values of the plant
and equipment as estimated by management.

Estimated impairment of plant and equipment

The Group’s major operating assets represent
machinery and equipment and vessel. Management
performs review for impairment of the machinery
and equipment and vessel whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts of these assets may not be recoverable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Estimated impairment of plant and equipment
(Continued)

Management considered there was no impairment
indicator on the carrying value of vessel as it
consistently generates profit and cash inflow to the
Group. Management considered there was also no
impairment indicator of machinery and equipment as
at year end as these assets were used for profitable
construction projects, and there is a strong demand
of these machinery and equipment in the second
hand market.

Impairment of trade receivables

Management determines the provision for
impairment of trade receivables based on the
credit history of customers and the current market
condition by business segment. The final outcome
of the recoverability of these receivables will impact
the amount of impairment required.

Construction contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimates of
contract revenue, contract costs, variation orders
and contract claims for each construction contract
as the contract progresses. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in estimating the total
contract revenue, contract costs, variation works
and contract claims which may have impact in terms
of the profit taken.

4 EE

B ISR B EE

&t T R B ()

R Rt 2 thETRE ()
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B &R EEREZEMRT
EH ZREEHE -

o)

BESY

AEEE/NEREANET

RRAWARmEZAHKA -

BHIRA  ERTEHRAKHH
R EFHETRET RERT - 1

et el A  BHKAE -

BT TRRRANHERBFIEL
HERE 2 HE - fem sty
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERARMYRE

4

5

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e

Income taxation

The Group is engaged in the vessel chartering
business and may be subject to various taxes in
different jurisdictions depending on the route of
the vessel. The Group has not recognised any
taxation liability based on management’s judgement
that the vessel chartering operation undertaken
by the Group is not subject to the taxation of any
jurisdictions.

Contingent liabilities in respect of litigations and
claims

The Group is involved in litigations and claims as
detailed in note 30. Contingent liabilities arising from
these litigations and claims have been assessed
by management with reference to legal advice.
Provisions on the possible obligation, if appropriate,
are made based on management’s latest and best
estimates and judgements.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue recognised during the year

Turnover EER
Vessel chartering revenue M & U A
Construction contract revenue BEAS WA

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =fI&EEARA
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57,179 4
124,062 112,610




Notes to the Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the Board of Directors of the Company. The Board
of Directors reviews the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments
based on these reports.

The Board of Directors considers all assets and
operations relating to the construction and trading of
machinery and equipment businesses of the Group are
located in Hong Kong and the vessel chartering business
is carried out worldwide and its revenue and assets
cannot be allocated into any meaningful geographical
location.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of
the operating segments based on their underlying profit,
which is measured by profit before finance income,
finance costs and taxation.

There are no sales between the operating segments.

B ISR B EE

BARDBER (&)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A AR Y RE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARDSEER(Z)
(Continued)
(@) Segment information (@ HEER

Year ended and as at 31st March 2010
BE-_Z-ZE-A=1+-RALEERR-Z-ZFE=HA=1+—-H

Trading of
machinery
Foundation and Vessel
works equipment chartering Total
BHK
WEIR BMES MMEE @t
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TER THER TR TART
Revenue A 57,179 - 66,883 124,062
Segment results NEEE 13,411 68 13,11 26,590
Corporate expenses TERY (12,529)
Operating profit L E 14,061
Finance income REWA 577
Finance costs BEKAK (3,533)
Profit before taxation BR B A& A 11,105
Taxation credit HMEBHE 579
Profit for the year KEFRF 11,684
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment R R EM 174,818 - 68,914 243,732
Current assets MBEE 57,840 7,305 16,244 81,389
Segment assets DEBE 232,658 7,305 85,158 325,121
Unallocated: ROE:
Deferred taxation assets ~ ELEHBEE 396
Cash and bank balance Be RBITER 62,583
Tax recoverable EEEE 26
Others Hi 453
Total assets per balance EBEBEXREELRE

sheet 388,579

72 SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =HI&EEERA A



5

Notes to the Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment information (Continued)

Segment liabilities

Unallocated:

Deferred taxation liabilities
Amount due to directors
Borrowings

Others

Total liabilities per balance
sheet

Capital expenditure

Depreciation

Reversal of provision for
impairment of receivables

NEAE

AR :
EXHERE
ERESFR
fE&

Efth

BEERBRAERE

BERRX

il
B m R (E

5

WA

i)

B ISR B EE

BHER(E)

(@ PDEEHRGE)

Year ended and as at 31st March 2010
BE_Z-Z5=fA=+t-HLFERR-ZE-EF=A=1—H

Trading of
machinery
Foundation and Vessel

works equipment chartering Total

B R
WEIR BEMES WHEE @t
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER TER TERT TERT
11,443 - 3,820 15,263
15,135
23,726
134,699
1,678
190,501
51,707 - - 51,707
4,622 - 4,662 9,284
(2,233) - - (2,233)
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PR ERARMYRE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARDSEER(Z)
(Continued)
(@) Segment information (Continued) @@ PDBEER(E)

Year ended and as at 31st March 2009
BEZZTNEZA=T-RALFERR-_ZSNF=A=+—H

74

Revenue

Segment results

Corporate expenses

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation credit

Profit for the year

Non-current assets
Plant and equipment
Current assets

Segment assets

Unallocated:

Deferred taxation assets
Cash and bank balance
Tax recoverable

Others

Total assets per balance
sheet

LON

TEAX
2R
RMEWA
RMEKK

5 5% A 1
REER

A i A

FRDEE
R R 2E
RYEE

RO :
ERHEEE
BeRBTES
A E T E
Hit

EERBREERHE
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Trading of

machinery

and

Foundation equipment Vessel

works & chartering Total
WEIR #MESH ffEE @t
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’' 000 HK$’ 000
THET THAT THT THT
4 - 112,606 112,610
(15,964) = 38,591 22,627
(12,719)
9,908
2,511
(4,253)
8,166
5,944
14,110
128,919 — 73,576 202,495
13,732 7,305 12,353 33,390
142,651 7,305 85,929 235,885
256
89,994
1,046
424
327,605
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B ISR B EE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARDEER(Z)
(Continued)
(@) Segment information (Continued) @ DEERE)

Year ended and as at 31st March 2009
BEZZTNGE=A=T-RALEERR-ZZNF=A=+—H

Trading of
machinery
and
Foundation equipment Vessel
works & chartering Total
HETIE ENES fMHE B
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TET AT AT THT
Segment liabilities ABEE 3,230 - 17,436 20,666
Unallocated: AOE:
Deferred taxation liabilities  #EEF; B A & 15,599
Amounts due to directors B EEFHAE 14,375
Borrowings BE 85,917
Others Hfth 1,634
Total liabilities per balance ZE & EXR B EEH
sheet 138,191
Capital expenditure BARREY 13,801 = 5,111 18,912
Depreciation e 6,350 - 5,053 11,408
(Reversal of)/provision for ~ EU R (1) /IRifE
impairment of receivables /& (329) - 1,861 1,532
Impairment of deposits ReRE 573 - - 573
The Group’s interest-bearing liabilities are managed NEFBZHEBEBBNIEAESEE
by the treasury function and are not considered to Mee W AR BSEEASEAE -

be segment liabilities.
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A AR Y RE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b)  Revenue are derived from the following major
customers:

Foundation works WHETE
Customer A BFH
Others HAh
Vessel chartering &
Customer B BFEZ
Customer C LY SIS
Customer D B2FET
Customer E B
Customer F ®xFE
Others HAh
6 OTHER INCOME
Gain on disposal of plant and HEREREM 2 WS
equipment
Sundries B

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =fI&EEARA

5

WA D BER (&)

) WATIRBETIEERR :

2010 2009
—2-%fF ZTTNHF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TER TAET
35,657 -
21,522 4
30,001 -
16,390 -
- 46,598
- 37,624
- 22,144
20,492 6,240
124,062 112,610
Ht e A
2010 2009
—2-8% ZTTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TERT TAET
1,347 2,922
1,175 17
2,522 2,939




EXPENSES BY NATURE

Fuel costs
Staff costs, including

directors’ emoluments (note)

Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation

— owned plant and equipment
— leased plant and equipment

Operating lease rentals in
respect of

— office and storage premises

— directors’ quarters
Professional fees
(Reversal of)/provision for

impairment of receivables
Impairment of deposits
Repair and maintenance
Construction contracts costs
Vessel management fee
Others

Total cost of sales and
administrative expenses

Note:

Total staff cost
Less: amount capitalised in
work-in-progress

Representing:
— wages and salaries
— contributions to retirement
scheme

Notes to the Financial Statements
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BRF PR A

BTA B
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e
—BERENREM
—HERENEFT

KEHEES

- WMRERBEWE
—EEER

BEXEH

FEWRIE (E148)
B 1

RemME

e RRE
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AmERER

H Al

HERARITH
E M

Hiat

HMEITRA
B RERTREE
BAZEHE

55
—ITEN¥E
— R ARET B

7

BAEEH S 2%
2010 2009
—®-%F —TETNE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T BT
28,161 41,681
8,212 8,813
868 905
7,978 10,710
1,306 693
1,890 1,753
1,896 1,896
4,291 5,272
(2,233) 1,632
- 573
4,359 6,626
31,208 48
6,404 7,929
18,183 17,210
112,523 105,641
15,672 8,813
(7,460) =
8,212 8,813
15,162 8,564
510 249
15,672 8,813
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PR ERAR MYRE

Finance income
Interest income on bank
deposits
Interest income on other
deposits
Others

Finance costs
Interest expense on
borrowings wholly repayable
within five years:
— bank loans and overdrafts
— finance leases

Finance costs, net

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =fI&EEARAF

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

BE KA
RITERZHBRA

H 7z M8 BA

H At

Al & AR A
AREFAEEEE
ZERZMEBRX

=

—RITERREX
—REME

U ON T LS
2010 2009
—E-8F ~—TThF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THT AT
577 640
- 1,831
- 40
577 2,511
2,610 3,529
923 724
3,533 4,253
2,956 1,742




Notes to the Financial Statements

TAXATION CREDIT

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit

B ISR AR B EE

BiIRE %

BERNESHERAFEHTER
@ M3%E16.5% (—ZEZNF : 16.5%)

for the year.

Hong Kong profits tax
Current taxation
Deferred taxation (note 24)

BB HER
BN EAFL 18
EIEF IR (KT sE24)

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from

the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate

in Hong Kong as follows:

Profit before taxation

Calculated at tax rate of 16.5%
(2009: 16.5%)

B B¢ B s 7

B %16 5% 5 B

Income not subject to taxation IR 2 WA
Expenses not deductible IR d 3
for taxation purposes
Tax losses not recognised REMR 2 HBERE
Utilisation of previously FRBEFERER
unrecognised tax losses Z HIEEE
Effect of decrease in tax rate METHZE
Taxation credit HIBHE R

IR o

2010 2009
—E-BF —TINF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FAT

25 50

(604) (5,994)

(579) (5,944)

LA BB AE M F E 2 HIR AR
RAAEMERAE 2 EmTRER

wmr
2010 2009
—E-TF —TINF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FAT
11,105 8,166
1,832 1,347
(11,577) (18,982)
9,182 12,657
6 253
(22) =
- (1,219)
(579) (5,944)
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BTSRRI RE

10

11

DIVIDENDS

EERAAREER
& B A%0.07 &l

Proposed final dividends of
HKO0.07 cent
(2009: HKO.1 cent) per
ordinary share

At a meeting held on 16th July 2010, the directors
proposed a final dividend of HKO0.07 cent per ordinary
share. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a
dividend payable in the financial statements, but will be
reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for the
year ending 31st March 2011 upon the approval by the
shareholders.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit attributable to shareholders eyl
Number of ordinary shares in issue AEFLAR 2 EE
Basic earnings per share FREXZF

As there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding as at 31st March 2010 and 2009, the diluted
earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per
share.

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =fI&EEARAF
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10 KR
2010 2009
—g-%F C—FTINF
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FHT FHT
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SREF
2010 2009
—g-g%F  —IIAF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHT Ti#7
11,684 14,110
3,020,000,000 3,020,000,000

HK0.387 cent
0.387& 1l

HKO0.467 cent
0.4677 1
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12 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND HIGHEST

PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a)

Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

Year ended 31st March 2010

Name of director

EEpd

Mr. Lau Chun Ming

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok

Mr. Lau Chun Ka

Ms. Leung Lai So

Mr. Hsu Kam Yee, Simon

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong
(note 32 (a)(ii))

Mr. Chiu Kam Kun, Eric
(note 32 (a)fi)

Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick

Miss Wong Tsui Yue, Lucy

Mr. Chan Wai Dune

Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR B EE

2RAEE
2IRE K&
ARKEE
PBEHLT
TRELE
REAEE
(W EE32(a)(i)
fickibbikd
(Bt z£32(a)(ii)
FEREL
TeHR
BERRLL
BR# R T E

12 EERBEEFALIHE

i}

@ BEERSAEEASHH

BE-Z—E4=-A=+—H

Employer’s
contribution

to pension

Directors’ scheme
Fees quarters  RIFEIZ Total
we ExRER EEHH st
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TERT TER TER TER
624 576 - 1,200
684 516 12 1,212
684 516 12 1,212
312 288 12 612
1,200 - 60 1,260
240 - - 240
240 - - 240
140 - - 140
80 - - 80
4,204 1,896 96 6,196
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BTSRRI RE

12 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND HIGHEST 12 EERESHFALEHE (E)
PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

i

(@) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments @) EENSREBRABEFHME)
(Continued)
Year ended 31st March 2009 BEZZNF=A=1+—H
Employer's
contribution
to pension
Directors’ scheme
Name of director Fees quarters  RIREEIZ Total
BN ok EEER BEHK @5

HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TER THL TAT THEL

Mr. Lau Chun Ming 2IHREA S A 624 576 3 1,203
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok 2IREL A 684 516 12 1,212
Mr. Lau Chun Ka BRR AL 684 516 12 1,212
Ms. Leung Lai So 2BEHLT 312 288 12 612
Mr. Hsu Kam Yee, Simon STRELE 1,200 - 60 1,260

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong BRELEE
(note 32 (a)(i) (FiE32 (a)(ii) - - - -

Mr. Chiu Kam Kun, Eric MR E
(note 32 (a)(i) (B £32 (a)(i) - - - -
Dr. Lee Peng Fei, Allen FlERET 240 - - 240
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick ~ E 2 %% 240 - - 240
Mr. Chan Wai Dune Bdein ok 240 = - 240
4,224 1,896 99 6,219
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12 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

13

(a)

Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
(Continued)

No directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year (2009: Nil). Fees
paid to Independent Non-executive Directors
during the year amounted to HK$700,000 (2009:
HK$720,000).

During the year, no emoluments were paid to any
of the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2009: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals were all directors

(2009: five), details of whose emoluments are
included in note (a) above.

PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year is

dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to
the extent of HK$1,196,000 (2009: HK$6,988,000).

12

13

B ISR AR B EE

EENRBEHFALHE (&)

AN
3L
=

EENSREBABEHM(E)

ajn

RER ESHEREXRE
REAAME (ZTTAEF :
) FAXNBUIERTE
£ 2% A700,0008 7T (=F
T4 1 720,000 7C) ©

RER > LERAEMNESE N
TAME - EREEEMAL
HMAREE NS R IERBE
BAEE(CZEZEAF T) -

AL

it

A B

hEBReHFALEEERES
“ZEEAF: Bf) - BB
RN £ XM (@)W E -

ARRELEFRASZEK

KRATHBRRERZ NEE T
N AR A 2N s A 2,196,000 7T
—EET R : 6,988,000/ 7T) °
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PR ERAR MYRE

14 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

At 1st April 2008
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31st March 2009
Opening net book amount
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31st March 2009
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31st March 2010
Opening net book amount
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31st March 2010
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

14 HRERSEN
KE
Machinery  Furniture
and and
equipment fixtures Motor
B KA vehicles Vessel Total
R REE b i @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TET TET TAR TER
R-ZEENFMA—H
A 237,001 1,444 4,689 82,750 325,884
2EHE (115,870) (979) (3,256) (8,796)  (128,901)
EEFE 121,131 465 1,433 73,954 196,983
BE-ETAE=RA=+-BItEE
AR mFE 121,131 465 1,433 73,954 196,983
e 12,913 280 608 5,111 18,912
HeE (1,446) (115) - (436) (1,997)
& (5,801) (138) (411) (5,053) (11,403
HRREFE 126,797 492 1,630 73576 202,495
R-BEAE=A=1—-8
KA 247,361 1,508 5,207 87,018 341,184
ZEE (120,564) (1,016) (3667)  (13442) (138,689
REEE 126,797 492 1,630 73576 202,495
BE-Z-EE-F-+-HIEE
HOERRFE 126,797 492 1,630 73,576 202,495
AE 49,878 101 1,728 = 51,707
HE (541) (181) (464) - (1,186)
& (3,865) (117) (640) (4,662) (9,284)
HRERFE 172,269 295 2254 68,914 243,732
R-E-ZF=f=1-H
AR 295,980 1,378 5,322 87,017 389,697
ZEE (123,711) (1,083) (3,068) (18,103)  (145,965)
REEE 172,269 295 2,254 68914 243732
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B ISR AR B EE

14 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14 RERBM(E)
REBZHEWRBIMEBEEL
EHEEREEK R_T—TF=
A=+—H EZREREmMmSEm
REMZEBFERAERIER
AEOEW R ZEEFED
#74,988,0008 L (ZEZE L 4F -
29,827,000 7t) &5,121,000/%8 7T

—ZTTNF 5,572,000 7T ) (KisE
28(a)(ii)) °

The machinery and equipment are held by the Group
for its on-going foundation construction business. At
31st March 2010, net book amounts of machinery
and equipment held under finance leases and
pledged for bank loans amounted to HK$74,988,000
(2009: HK$29,827,000) and HK$5,121,000 (2009:
HK$5,572,000) (note 28(a)(ii)), respectively.

Company NN

Furniture and fixtures

REARESE
2010 2009
—E-TF —TTAEFE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET T T
At beginning of the year REA
Cost B AR 27 27
Accumulated depreciation R E (27) (27)
Net book amount R FE - -
Year ended 31st March HE=A=+—HLLFE
Opening net book amount B BR D VFHE - -
Depreciation e - =
Closing net book amount BR AR S (B - =
At end of the year RER
Cost BN 27 27
Accumulated depreciation R2EHinE (27) (27)
Net book amount REFE - -
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B RSERAR MIEE

15 SUBSIDIARIES 15 KELQF
2010 2009
—E-ZTF ZZETAF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT FE T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LM - K AE 117,567 117,567
Amount due from a subsidiary FE W BT /B8 A Rl Zk IR 25,483 6,764
Less: Impairment of receivables & : & U FRIE BB (4,165) (4,165)
21,318 2,599
Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33. F ZK B A R R M 5E33 ©
The amounts receivable are unsecured, bearing interests JEl B AEER BB 1EAR
at 1 month HIBOR plus 1% and have no fixed terms TRIZES BN EET B R B E &8
of repayment. The carrying amounts of the balances HHR - ZEEHR 2 RAEHEER
approximate their fair values. FEESE
16 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 16 EWRIZEEWARSES
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E2-TF ZZETAF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT FE T
Trade receivables JE W BR SR
— Third parties —E£=7 40,604 16,381
— A related party — B AL 40 40
40,644 16,421
Retention receivables JE UL B AR BE & 2,095 1,411
42,739 17,832
Less: Impairment B ORE R (8,270) (12,364)
34,469 5,468
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B ISR AR B EE

16 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES 16 BUWERRBURRES (&)
(Continued)
The Group’s credit terms for its vessel chartering and AEBMMEAEREETIRERR
construction business are individually negotiated with FEEEK fkﬂfl%‘]iﬁi,ﬁ\ﬁ%gﬁﬁi
its trade customers. For voyage chartering, freight is e mBEMMEME BE — KRN
normally paid prior to discharging of cargoes. Trade and EMHEA T  BEREXL 2
retention receivables in respect of contracting business JE U BR 3R K JE Uk B W AR B8 & T AR 1R
are settled in accordance with the terms of respective RBEWIET4EE -
contracts.
At 31st March 2010, the ageing analysis of the trade and )3’(\ — T ZFTF=A=1+—H" EWK
retention receivables was as follows: KEBBRE & 2 BREDITLT
Group
KEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET AT
0 to 90 days 0%290H 22,789 4,017
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 11,640 -
More than one year =& P e 8,310 13,815
42,739 17,832
At 31st March 2010, trade receivables of HK$32,374,000 N-—ZET—FZF=A=+—H " EWl)K
(2009: HK$4,057,000) were past due but not impaired. BR A 832,374,000/ 7T (ZEZEh,
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as £ 1 4,057,000 JT) 2 8 H1B KA
follows: B ZERKERZERITET
Group
rEH
2010 2009

—E-FF —ZTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FERT T T
0 to 90 days 02£90H 20,694 4,017
91 to 180 days (note a) 918 £1808 (Kfzxa) 11,640 -
More than one year —F P 40 40
32,374 4,057

—Z—TFF | ANNUAL REPORT 2010 87



88

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MYRE

16 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

(a) The balance represented demurrage receivable of
US$1,492,000 (approximately HK$11,640,000) from a
shipper of cargoes (note 30).

(b) At 31st March 2010, retention receivables of
HK$2,095,000 (2009: HK$1,411,000) were not yet due
and were not impaired.

(c) At 31st March 2010, HK$8,270,000 of the trade
receivables (2009: HK$12,364,000) were impaired and
fully provided. The aging of such receivables are as
follows:

More than one year —F A E

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =fI&EEARAF

16

FEWRRA R BURE € (F)

(a)

WEHRDDER —ZFE A
1,492,000 7T (#911,640,000
&0 M IEE (H7E30) °

RZZT—ZTF=A=+—H &
U B U (R 28 2,095,000/ 7T (=
ZZNF 1,411,000 7T) WA
B MERE -
RZZE—ZTF=A=+—H" &
W BR TR 75 818,270,000 7T (=&
=T A 12,364,0005 7T) B R
BEREEEE ZFREERERRZ
FREC o MTan T ¢

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FHT
8,270 12,364
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16 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade and
retention receivables are as follows:

At beginning of the year R 1)

Provision for impairment of & U8R 51k B # 15
receivables

Bad debt written off RIZ AR

Reversal of provision upon U 7k 1% # Bl # &
settlement

At end of the year RER

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in administrative expenses.
Amounts charged to the provision account are generally
written off when there is no expectation of recovering
additional cash.

The carrying amounts of trade and retention receivables
are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar BT
United States dollar T

B ISR AR B EE

16 EUWRREBURES (&)

Kt (%&)

(d) RUERFEBKRESRERE

ZEBHMT

Group

AEE
2010 2009
—E-88 -"TTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHAT
12,364 10,832
- 1,861
(1,861) —
(2,233) (329)
8,270 12,364

FEM R FUR BB IR sk E B B
BRETERAX—HA - E8H
EOXW O BRINR B R A BB R
BBl T AME -

e RBREREBRURRESZEEE
AT ERESIE :

Group

rEE
2010 2009
—2-%F _TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FHET
22,829 1,451
11,640 4,017
34,469 5,468
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PR ERAR MYRE

17 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

B IR KR &
®re RIANKIRA

Deposits for performance bonds
Deposits and prepayment

At 31st March 2010 and 2009, all balances were not yet
past due and were not impaired.

18 INVENTORIES

Machinery and equipment Wtk R B30
Bunkers on board i R A e

19 CONTRACTING WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Contract costs incurred plus S FTE A S N AN
attributable profits less

foreseeable losses to date

Progress billings to date 25 2 EERNR
Amounts due from customers JEWTREAL
for contract work EEFIE

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =fI&EEARAF

JEAE % R F] 7B R &5 18

17 RE BEANARERHEMEKRRE
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-2F ZZTTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHTT
1,863 -
4,757 3,694
6,620 3,694
%:Eihiﬁ T —TF=H
=+—H: ' bt 254 %I*@
5 ﬁ%ﬂﬁ
18 #F&
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-25 ZZTTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FET
9,138 9,138
1,877 5,749
11,015 14,887
19 HEEIREHN
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-2F _—TINF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHETT
120,345 67,652
(90,607) (57,887)
29,738 9,765
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B ISR AR B EE

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 20 BERBTERE
Group Company
rE AAT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-Zf —ZTNE ZT-TF —TITHF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FTEx FTHET THxT THET
Cash at bank and in hand ROTREFES 16,064 24,773 881 864
Short-term bank deposits KHERTER 46,519 65,221 19,517 40,221
62,583 89,994 20,398 41,085
Less: Cash and bank balances & : & RIB1THERF
— restricted (note 28(a)() — BB &l (K E28()() (46,519) (65,204) (19,517) (40,204)
Cash and bank balances HEeRBITET
— unrestricted — &R 16,064 24,790 881 881

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 0.04% (2009: 0.97%); these deposits have an
average maturity of 28 days (2009: 162 days).

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the
purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement:

Cash and bank balances HWe MB1THEE
— unrestricted — 45 R
Bank overdrafts (note 28) 175 < (Mi5E28)

RERITERZ BB FI X 50.042
(ZZEZTAE:0978) : ZEHEXK
ZFHRNEE B8R (ZETNE:
162K)

MEAREREBRRME - REM
ReFERBEENIIESE:

Group

A
2010 2009
—2-2F —TTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FET
16,064 24,790
(35,506) (44,972)
(19,442) (20,182)
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PR ERAR MYRE

20 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued) 20 RERBITERF(E)
The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances are Re RBITEFZERABNATIE
denominated in the following currencies: BB(E -
Group Company
r5E AAF
2010 2009 2010 2009

—g-%% -“TTLF -B-BF -TIhE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Ta#x TR TEx  TER

Hong Kong dollar BT 58,689 67,142 20,398 41,085
United States dollar ETT 3,894 22,852 - -
62,583 89,994 20,398 41,085
21 SHARE CAPITAL 21 KR
2010 2009
—E-FF —_ZTTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET TF&T
Authorised: JETE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares ~ 10,000,000,000H% % f& (&
of HK$0.01 each 0.01% 7T 2 i 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTEREHR :
3,020,000,000 ordinary shares 3,020,000,000% & i H &
of HK$0.01 each 0.01 BTz ERBIK 30,200 30,200
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B ISR AR B EE

22 RESERVES 22 f#iE
Group
r5H
Share Merger Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
RBEE  AHREE REEF HE
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$ 000
TAT THT THT THT
At 1st April 2008 RZZZENEMA—H 29,093 (12,974) 132,911 149,030
Dividends paid BRHE - - (3,926) (3,926)
Profit for the year AEE w7 - - 14,110 14,110
At 31st March 2009 RZZEZENF=A=+—H 29,093 (12,974) 143,095 159,214
Dividends paid BRARE - - (3,020) (3,020)
Profit for the year AEE w7 - - 11,684 11,684
At 31st March 2010 R-ZE-—ZEF=A=+—H 29,093 (12,974) 151,759 167,878
Representing: 55
At 31st March 2010 RZE-ZF=RA=+—H
Reserves e 29,093 (12,974) 149,645 165,764
2010 final dividends ZE-TEEERARE
proposed (note 10) (K5£10) = = 2,114 2,114
29,093 (12,974) 151,759 167,878

The Group’s merger reserve represents the difference
between the aggregation of the nominal value of the
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof pursuant to the group reorganisation
completed on 28th March 2003.

AEEzEHHERBREREEEEA
R-FBZE=ZF=ZA-_+/\BZEXE
P Ui 58 BT B8 12 B O PR AN 48 TH (B B2 K
DA RBRENA BB 2 1T B R
HEZFEER -
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PR ERAR MYRE

22 RESERVES (Continued)

22 fEE(E)

Company
¥ NG
Share Contributed Retained
premium surplus earnings Total
R EE EfEH REEF By
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
AT THT THT THET
(note)
((i3)
At 1st April 2008 R_ZZENFNA—H 29,093 94,317 3,191 126,601
Dividends paid EENEESE - - (3,926) (3,926)
Profit for the year (note 13) AEE & | (HI:13) - - 6,988 6,988
At 31st March 2009 R-_EZAF=ZA=F+—H 29,093 94,317 6,253 129,663
Dividends paid B2 - - (3,020) (3,020)
Profit for the year (note 13) A% & A (K zE13) - - 1,196 1,196
At 31st March 2010 R-_E-—ZF=ZA=+—H 29,093 94,317 4,429 127,839
Representing: 5% :
Reserves 1 29,093 94,317 2,315 125,725
2010 final dividends —E-TERERERE
proposed (note 10) (FE10) - = 2,114 2,114
29,093 94,317 4,429 127,839
Note: H1aE -

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda (as amended) and
the Bye-Laws of the Company, the contributed surplus is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company. Accordingly,
the total distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st March
2010 amounted to HK$98,746,000 (2009: HK$100,570,000).

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the difference
between the net asset values of the subsidiaries acquired over
the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange thereof pursuant to the group reorganisation.
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BEBREREQRE (KB REAA
RIZHA BERBHTIAI DK T A
ARRAIBRR AW RZZTE—ZF=
B=+—BARQa 8 #5kHFEL
51 498,746,000 T (ZEZF N F :

100,570,000/ 7T) °

ARFRZEZGBHERNASESHER
REEH B AR FEEERARF
RERZEEEMETZRMEEZ
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B ISR AR B EE

23 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 23 RHEfEE
Group
REH
2010 2009
—E-TF —TTAEFE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T T
Wholly repayable within five years ZBER T F AR HEE
Bank loans, secured (note (a)) IRITE - B (H3E@) 15,406 5,086
Obligations under finance leases @& & &7 (M 7E())
(note (b)) 46,073 16,067
61,479 21,153
Less: Amounts due within one W ETARBBEET
year included under 22— FREIHFE
current liabilities (20,636) (8,890)
40,843 12,263
Notes: Hiat
(a)  The Group’s bank loans are repayable as follows: @ AEBERTERRTIHMEE
-
Group
NEE
2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FHIT
Within one year —F R 4,176 1,680
In the second year F-F 4,052 1,700
In the third to fifth years FE=EFTERFE 7,178 1,706
15,406 5,086
Interest is charged on the balances at rates ranging from HERIREFRAEEC58E (ZF
4% to 6.58% (2009: 5.76% to 6.8%). Details of security TNEF 576/ EE6.8E) 2 BX
and guarantee are disclosed in note 28(a). AR WHRERZFBEER

Ff7£28(@a) °
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B TSERARMIEE

23 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (Continued) 23 RHEEBE#E)
Notes: (Continued) Kiat - (&)
(b)  Obligations under finance lease are payable within the b) ZERTHHEXNHRERER
following periods: 75 -
Group
£33
Present value Minimum payment
BRRE BNENE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—2-%F -TTNF -¥-%F "TINF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TERT THET TET THET
Within one year —FR 16,460 7,210 17,907 7,717
In the second year BF 12,818 6,531 13,742 6,749
In the third to fifth years FE=FEERF 16,795 2,326 17,421 2,367
46,073 16,067 49,070 16,833
Finance charges M5 E R (2,997) (766)
46,073 16,067

Interest is charged on the outstanding balances of finance
leases at rates ranging from 1 month HIBOR plus 2.5% to
5.54% (2009: ranging from 1 month HIBOR to 1.5% below
Hong Kong dollar prime rate).

(c) The carrying amount of long-term borrowings
approximates their fair values and are denominated in
Hong Kong dollar.
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RAABRITRZERSIM25EE
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B ISR B EE

24 DEFERRED TAXATION 24 EEFIF

Deferred taxation is recognised on temporary differences REFREXRBAABINEREZER
under the liability method using a taxation rate of 16.5% HE16.5% (ZEZENF  16.5%) it
(2009: 16.5%). The movements on the net deferred ReEEFHE(BE) BAEFESR
taxation (liabilities)/assets are as follows: g -

Group Company

r&EE EAF

2010 2009 2010 2009

—g-%% -—TINE -%-BF -FTINE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Fan  TET  Fen  TEx

At beginning of the year RE] (15,343) (21,337) 114 71
Recognised in the REZKZPER
profit or loss (note 9) (BF7E9) 604 5,994 150 43
At end of the year RER (14,739) (15,343) 264 114
The movements in deferred taxation liabilities and assets FRELEREBEREEZS CRE
during the year, without taking into consideration the B —M el AR &K E) 1
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are T~
as follows:
Deferred taxation liabilities — Accelerated depreciation BEEFIHAE - INRITERTE
allowances
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-Z2F Z—ZTTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTHEx THET
At beginning of the year REA (20,212) (21,498)
Recognised in the profit or loss ~ RERXFER (3,099) 1,286
At end of the year RER (23,311) (20,212)
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PR ERARMYRE

24 DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred taxation assets — Tax losses

At beginning of the year
Recognised in the profit or loss

At end of the year

At beginning of the year
Recognised in the profit or loss

At end of the year

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =fI&EEARA

REA]

RBRRTHER

NER

REA]

RBRRTHER

RNER

24 EFEFIE (FE)

EREMAEE-HIABRE

Group

rEE
2010 2009
—2-2F —TTAF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FET
4,869 161
3,703 4,708
8,572 4,869

Company

¥ NN
2010 2009
—2-2F —TTAF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FET
114 71
150 43
264 114
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DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
taxation assets against current taxation liabilities and
when the deferred taxation relate to the same fiscal
authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet.

B IAEE
B IABE

Deferred taxation liabilities
Deferred taxation assets

Deferred taxation assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
As at 31st March 2010, the Group had unrecognised
temporary differences arising from unutilised tax losses
of HK$9,349,000 (2009: HK$9,444,000) to carry forward
against future taxable income. These tax losses have not
yet been agreed by the tax authorities, but once agreed,
these tax losses have no expiry date.

24

B ISR B EE

AR E (2)

BFE R FORITR N S B AR IR
BEHENBANARGBERE  URE
FER IS KR — B B B B0
T EERAEEAEELEREAR
BEAEE - THEREFAEE
HHR NEEABRAEK -

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—E-BF —TTAF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FB T
(15,135) (15,599)
396 256
(14,739) (15,343)

EIEFRTBE E T E EAER R 15 5l =
A 375 38 7R 2R FE =R B 0% FI £ 38 M gt By
HEHBEEERER RZZ—
EE=-ZA=+—H A&EBHLXH
FAMIBEBES B REBERYR £
£ /39,349,000 L (ZEE NF -
9,444,000 7C) 2 E S HAEHE I
AR $E AR R ERF UL A ot FE
THEEWRERBHEZE  1E—
Kz ERTHIEBEBLREER -
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PR ERARMYRE

25 TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES

Balances included retention payable of HK$197,000
(2009: HK$42,000) which is denominated in Hong
Kong dollar. The ageing analysis of the remaining trade
payables is as follows:

0 to 90 days 0£90H

91 to 180 days 912180H
181 to 365 days 181%365H
More than one year —FEPF

The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated
in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar I
United States dollar ETT
Other currencies Hip g

26 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
At 31st March 2009, the balance mainly comprised an

advance received from a customer for chartering vessel of
HK$6,361,000 and accrued expenses.
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25

26

FEAERARBURE S

ATABRNEREBWERBSH 2
NBWRBEAETLINE €8 E
197,000/ 7t (ZZ F JL4F : 42,000
BIT) o H A BR AR ER o AT a8
T~

Group

AEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZTENF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THERT THET
10,436 9,431
101 247
9 —
1,392 1,392
11,938 11,070

FERNRRARA TSI B 5E -

Group

rEE
2010 2009
—E-8F —ZTTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTET TFE T
9,455 1,508
2,120 9,111
363 451
11,938 11,070

FE &t 8 A & H At FE Y 7RO

R-ZBEAE=A=+—HB #ZXK
BEGTERE—RTFEHBMM
Z B FIE6,361,00008 T KBS B
% o
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27 AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES AND
DIRECTORS

28

Amounts due to related companies and directors are
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. The
amounts are denominated in Hong Kong dollar and
approximate their fair values.

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Bank overdrafts (note 20)
Short-term bank loans

Secured short-term bank
borrowings (note (a))

(a)

#R1738 3 (M EE20)
RHRITER

BERMEHRRITER
& & (M iE()

Banking facilities

As at 31st March 2010, the Group’s banking
facilities totalling approximately HK$178,355,000
(2009: HK$94,153,000) were secured by the
following:

(ii

(i)

(iv)

Bank deposits of the Group amounting to
HK$46,519,000 (2009: HK$65,204,000) (note
20);

Certain machinery and equipment of the
Group (note 14);

Corporate guarantee given by the Company
and two subsidiaries for an amount of
HK$143,816,000 (2009: HK$72,126,000) in
aggregate; and

Cross guarantee for HK$86,765,000 (2009:
HK$36,084,000) among a number of
subsidiaries.

B ISR B EE

27 BNBAEAARESENER

FAEERARESRIEAREE
M oeEREETERS RER
EAB T - b REE Y ATE
% -

28 BHER

(@)

Group

rEE
2010 2009
—g-%% =—TINF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHT
35,506 44,972
37,714 19,792
73,220 64,764

RITEE

2 =
N
] [\ —

F-FE=A=+—

B AEERITEELEY
178,355,000 T (Z 2 Z 11
£ 194,153,000/ 7C) * B 5
FIREEA

(i)

ANQRIPEITERY
46,519,000 L (=& F
L4 : 65,204,0005 7T)
(Bt 5E20)

KEFEE T W KM
(M7£E14)

KRR EMERH B A A
B2 1 & $£143,816,000
B (DT A F
72,126,000/ 7T) Z A &
R &

%Z X MW B 2 7
86,765,000/ L (—Z & F
FL4F : 36,084,000 7T )
ZRNIHEAR
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PR ERARMYRE

28 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS (Continued)

28 BHEXR(E)

(b) The effective interest rates at the balance sheet b) REEB2EBRFERE:
dates were:
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETENF
HK$ uss HK$ uss$
BT E BT ETT
Bank overdrafts RITEX 2.15% - 2.82% =
Bank loans RITERK 3.79% 3.53% 2.66% 4.61%
(c) The carrying amount of short-term borrowings () REHRTERZEEEREEAD
approximate their fair values and are denominated in FEMAELIA T EEDE :
the following currencies:
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-TF —TTHEFE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T T
Hong Kong dollar BT 57,255 60,972
United States dollar ETT 15,965 3,792
73,220 64,764
29 COMMITMENTS 29 KiE
(@) Capital commitment @ EAEE
Group
EE
2010 2009
—E-BF5 ZZTTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T T
Contracted but not provided for ThE B AR R 2
machinery and equipment BERNERIERE 22,742 -
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COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(b)  Operating lease commitments

The future aggregate minimum lease rental expenses
in respect of office and storage premises and
directors’ quarters under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable in the following periods:

Within one year —F R
In the second to fifth years S5 -&FZE=FHF
inclusive (BREEEMF)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year, an action was lodged to the Federal
Court of Australia by a owner of the cargoes (the
“plaintiff’) against a subsidiary of the Company, Asian
Atlas Limited (“Asian Atlas”) claiming for loss and damage
in relation to the transportation of a jack-up barge of
US$1,405,000 (approximately HK$10,969,000).

On 25th January 2010, Asian Atlas filed a defence and
a cross-claim for the settlement of the outstanding
demurrage and other damages of US$1,492,000
(approximately HK$11,640,000) to the plaintiff. The Court
has given an order for a mediation, which is expected to
be held in August 2010.

The Group has sought the advice of its legal counsel and
considered that Asian Atlas has a reasonable chance of
success in defending against the claim and also being
awarded of damages on the counterclaim based on
current findings. Accordingly, no provision has been
made for the claim and the corresponding legal costs
arising from the claim and counterclaim.

29

30

B ISR B EE

A (E)
b) MEMEHRE
RERAERBEEVENANE

EEEZTAIEHLEHEEM
ARATHR XN 2 RRKE

HeBRBRBEAT

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—2-%F -—TTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTHET T T
1,763 1,106
666 327
2,429 1,433

XAREE

REAFERN AR F—FHB QT
Asian Atlas Limited ([Asian Atlas])
Ww—REXx([BFA)) REH
— 8 FHB& T 1 F A& B 72 R M B B
% BE 32 3F = {81,405,0003% T (49
10,969,0005 7T) °

R-_ZT—FF—HF_+FH ' Asian
AtlasiE Hii st - W R E X/
B REMBEMRFARD
1,492,000% 7t (4911,640,0007% 7T)
MRRE AEDBEEDSETE
TR BABER_ZT—ZF )\ A
T o

AEEEBKEMER  RAEBIE
HEFIFN + Asian AtlasE B & EB#E
BRI BRE N RERREBRN R
Bt WEFHRE - RBHE
EERRREAEEBAELRE -
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PR ERARMYRE

31 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 31 GEREREWME
(@) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash (used (a) EEFHELEER(FE),/
in)/generated from operations FriSiR SR
2010 2009
—E2-ZTF ZZETAF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT T
Operating profit 4 i | 14,061 9,908
Depreciation e 9,284 11,403
Gain on disposal of plant & R R B e
and equipment (1,347) (2,922)
(Reversal of)/provision for FEU R IE (B [B)) R B R
impairment of receivables (2,233) 1,632
Impairment of deposits RERE - 573
Cash generated from RETEEESEFHA
operations before working & &EEFTFRE
capital changes 19,765 20,494
Increase in trade and JE W AR R K B R B8 &
retention receivables 30 (26,768) (23)
(Increase)/decrease in Be o ENREREM
deposits, prepayments FE W SR IE (38 00) /R A
and other receivables (2,926) 35,584
Decrease in inventories FERD 3,872 3,834
Increase in contracting ERETIRAAEM
work-in-progress (19,973) -
Increase/(decrease) in trade  FEfTER 7K M BB IR B &
and retention payables o, Crt2>) 1,023 (266)
(Decrease)/increase in FEET B R % H fth FE 15 SRR
accruals and other O 2) /& hn
payables (6,382) 6,635

Net cash (used in)/generated #& & %75 (FTH) /s
from operations ZR&FHE (31,389) 66,258
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Notes to the Financial Statements

31 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Major non-cash transaction

In 2010, the major non-cash transaction for the year
was the finance lease arrangement as entered by
the Group for purchase of plant and equipment of
HK$42,345,000 during the year.

In 2009, the major non-cash transactions included
(i) the inception of the finance lease arrangement
of HK$9,300,000; and (i) the trade-in of an used
machinery of HK$3,500,000 for purchase of
machinery and equipment of HK$12,800,000.

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

During the year, apart from those disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the following
significant transactions were carried with related
parties:

Paid and payable to related
parties:
Rental expenses to related

RIE

companies (note (i) 2 R (KT 7Eq)

Consultancy fee paid to
related companies
(note (i)

(B & Gil))

ENRENTEBEAL

31

32

XN TFEBERRIZESR

XNTEHERRZERE

B ISR B EE

SERERBEXR(E)

TEHRRERH

TE-TEEZTEFREAEXR
FNAEBRANEEAREE

42,345,000/ 7T &% 16 M 23 M
I ERERHE -

TEENFFEZEERS
RGIDAEERAFEENAE
E12,800,000/%8 It 2 % 5 & 25
()] 329,300,000/ 7T 2 &l
BERETHE - A K(i)E 4 — 3P
3,500,000/ 70 2 — F 128 -

BFREALRS

(a)

RER  BRBBHRREMED
FIEEN  NEEBEERE
BERBEETATEARS !

2010 2009
—E-%F “TTAF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHT FHT
2,976 2,976
1,680 1,680
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERARMYRE

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(@  (Continued)
Notes:

(i) Rental expenses are paid to companies beneficially
owned by the directors of the Company based on
the agreements entered into between the parties
involved with reference to market rates of similar

properties.

(i) Consultancy fees were paid to companies in which
the directors, Mr. Chan Sun Kwong and Mr. Chiu
Kam Kun, Eric have beneficial interests in respect
of their services provided to the Group, and were
charged at monthly fees agreed by the parties
involved.

(b) Key management compensation

The compensation of key management personnel
paid or payable by the Group in respect of the
year comprised of directors’ emoluments and
consultancy fees paid, totaling HK$7,876,000
(2009: HK$7,899,000).

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =fI&EEARA

32 FBEALRS (&)

(a)

(%)

Hrat

(i

HMEeBRNVEEBIINT
P RT 3 2 Wh o 3 2 PR (R 8
MEMSHAEXNTAR
RAEEERBALIRA -

PAEFRREALEERE
BEYETLEEEHBREL
REIMAEBREMHZ R
XNERE  LREMA
HRWE 2 A EWKER

TEEE A SR

AEERAFEEN REME
EERABZHM ESFHe
N BB 18 £ #£7,876,00078 7T (=
ZENF 1 7,899,000/87T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR B EE

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 33 EHEBAF
Listed below are the principal subsidiaries wholly-owned THAERRAEZEHREZ EEHE
by the Company. NG
Issued and fully paid Principal activities
Name ordinary share capital and place of operation
AR BB ERTRAREERAE TEEY EERY

Incorporated in Hong Kong, indirectly held
REEAMA U GERE

Sam Woo Bore Pile Foundation Limited 10,000,000 shares of HK$1 each Foundation works in Hong Kong
=M EERAA 10,000,000 BRREE 1B T2 R WEIR/FE
Sam Woo Construction & Engineering Limited 100,000 shares of HK$1 each Trading of used foundation works
related machinery and equipment
in Hong Kong
=MERERBR AT 100,000 EREEIET KRG  —FHETRERSN
85/%8%
Sam Woo Construction Limited 10,000 shares of HK$1 each Foundation works in Hong Kong
=MEERRAA 10,0008k B Ak E {17 7T 2 B {7 WEIR/BE
Sam Woo Engineering Equipment Limited 500,000 shares of HK$1 each Leasing and trading of machinery
and equipment for foundation works
in Hong Kong
ZHEHAERAR 500,000k BREEIEL LR  WEIREBSVEER
85/8%
Incorporated in Republic of Seychelles,
indirectly held
REZBRAGF ML U EERE
Asian Atlas Limited 5,000 shares of US$1 each Shipping operation operated
on a worldwide basis
5,000 R EE1ET 2 KA WBEE/ 2}
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 34 EBAERDT
The directors of the Company regarded Silver Bright KA &) Z F48Silver Bright Holdings
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British Limited (7% 52 8 B2 22 B S st A2 2
Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company. NCIDNEE- S NI
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Five Year Financial Summary

IEHBERE

Results
Revenue

Profit before taxation
Taxation credit/(charge)

Profit attributable
to shareholders

Dividends

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

ES
LN

R Bt AT )t
REESR/ (Zi)

B R 16 7l

BE
BEREE
BERE

SREEE

BEFE

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =fI&EEARAF

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“B-BF _TTNE _BTN\F _TTLE _ITITRF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TET TRT TEL TRT TET
124,062 112,610 111,873 122,601 104,803
11,105 8,166 19,893 31,095 2,397
579 5,944 2,079 (1,922) 1,979
11,684 14,110 21,972 29,173 4,376
2,114 3,020 3,926 6,040 =
388,579 327,605 326,773 309,330 357,365
190,501 138,191 147,543 147,412 224,620
198,078 189,414 179,230 161,918 132,745
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